
EFGHIJKJLMNOOPJQFROHSTGUOF
 
CDEFGEHIJ789::9;7:< 

=F>GJ?@HFGEHIJ789;A9;7:< 

BCEF>EJDEJFHEF>EHJGGFGJHI?JJFCCJKEEHJGIJLIM@CEGEJGGF>JLIEEDJ@FNEJOFKLC?HFKNJ>FNKFG?DE>PJDEQIDEJFCCJIQ 
GGEJIGGEDJGF>R>JF>>FNKEHJGIJHI?JDHJHI?DJF?GGIDFSEDJFDEJEF>FDCEJIKJHI?DJGF>RJ@FNETJUGFCEJLIM@CEGFKN 
GGF>JGF>RVJ@CEF>EJEK>?DEJGGFGJHI?J>ECELGJGGEJLIDDELGJF?GGIDFSEDJIDJHI?JMFHJKIGJDEJF>>FNKEHJGGE 
LIDDELGJGF>R>T 

BFNEJ: 

TVJLWXYYZJ[\]EJ\[^J_E^L` 

OWECELGJKFMEJQDIMJGGEJHDI@JHIJKJMEK?P 

WXYZ[J,-X./JC=0WW1C0=JCWJO.2CJC[0.C#==X-PJ$;:;77%<7%A% 

aVJWX\bcEbJ\dcXYbQeEb 

O&IDJGELGKFLFCJDEF>IK>VJ@CEF>EJDE'>ECELGJF?GGIDFSEDJKFMEJQDIMJGGEJHDI@JHIJKJMEK?PT 

.2C(X#'0?GGIDFSEHJCGFDGEDJWLGIIC 

MVJ^QLcbQWcJfJWL^JYgJZYW\cQY[ 

.2CJCW(J:; 

hKVJLWXYYZJQ[gYb]\cQY[ 

B-1)0-2J0((-#WW B[X.#J.Y),#- &0/J.Y),#- #)01=J0((-#WW 

A88J&I*JWGT 
,DIK*VJ.2J:7+,A 

8:%'%<7'+$+7 8:%'%<7'+:;, 
CCIKN->I?GGDDIK*LC 
F>>FLFCTIDN 

hiVJjXY[EJWY[c\WcJ[d]_EbJgYbJ\gcEbJXYdbLJE]EbkE[WQEL
 

CIKGFLGJ.FME =E>GEDJ=IKN 

ZFGCE #*EL?GFEEJ(FDELGID 

123425 

mailto:llong@southbronxclassical.org


#MEDNEKLHJBGIKEJ.?MDEDJO...'...'....P
 

lVJLWXYYZJmE_J\^^bELLJndbZo 

GGG@I99LCF>>FLFCLGFDGED>LGIIC>TIDN9 

RVJ^\cEJYgJQ[QcQ\ZJWX\bcEb 

:;9;77+ 

uVJ^\cEJgQbLcJYjE[E^JgYbJQ[LcbdWcQY[ 

7%9;7:< 

NKVJ\jjbYvE^JLWXYYZJ]QLLQY[JnblulFGwxJ[yW^YExJTFhJ_zRRTPOJ_YEJTzGNOHU{lh 

wMNOOPwJOFPIo 

)1WW1X.JWZ0Z#)#.Z 

WI?GGJ,DIK*JCCF>>FLFCJCGFDGEDJWLGIICJ1J@DE@FDE>JY'%GGJNDFHEJ>LGICFD>JFKJGGEJWI?GGJ,DIK*JGIJE*LECJFK 

LICCENEJ@DE@FDFGIDHJGFNGJ>LGIIC>TJZGDI?NGJFJLCF>>FLFCJL?DDFL?C?MJFKHJGFNGCHJ>GD?LG?DEHJ>EGGFKNV 
>G?HEKG>JDELIMEJCFDEDFGEHJ>LGICFD>JFKHJLFGFSEK>JIQJFM@ELLFDCEJLGFDFLGEDJJGIJFLGFEEEJ@DIQFLFEKLH 

FKJFKHJFHEFKLEHJMF>GEDHJIQJ.EJJ2IDRJWGFGEJBEDQIDMFKLEJWGFKHFDH>T 

NiVJ|EyJ^ELQk[JEZE]E[cLJnblulFGwxJ[yW^YExJTFhJ_zRRTPOJ_YEJTzGNOHU{lh 

wMNOOPwJOFPIo 
Y#2J(#W1Z.J#=#)#.ZWJO,DFEQJHE>LDF@GFIKP 

[FDFFDCEJ:	 CCF>>FLFCJ&DFMEJIDRIJUEJ>GDIKNCHJDECFEEEJGGFGJI?D 
>LGIICJMIHECJDE>GJMEEG>JGGEJKEEH>JIQJFCCJ>G?HEKG>JFK 
I?DJGFDNEGJ@I@?CFGFIKTJZGEJREHJLIM@IKEKG>JIQJF 
LCF>>FLFCJEH?LFGFIKJFKJGGEJEFDCHJHEFD>JQIL?>JIKJFJLIDE 
L?DDFL?C?MVJGGEJHEEECI@MEKGJIQJ>GDIKNJCFGEDFLHJFKH 
K?MEDFLHJ>RFCC>VJRKIJCEHNEVJFKHJ?KHED>GFKHFKNJIQ 
ECEMEKGFDHJQFLG>VJJFGGJCE>>JEM@GF>F>JIKJ\GFNGED 
CEEEC]JGGFKRFKNVJ?KGFCJCFGEDJNDFHE>TJ1KJFCCJNDFHE>VJI?D 
>LGICFD>JHEEECI@JLIDEJRKIJCEHNEJFKJGGEJDF>FL 
>?D^ELG>JIQJDEFHFKNVJJDFGFKNVJMFGGVJ>LFEKLEVJFKH 
GF>GIDHTJW?D^ELG>JFDEJGF?NGGJHFDELGCHJFKHJ>E_?EKGFFCCHV 
F>JLCEFDCHJEC?LFHFGEHJFKJGGEJCIMMIKJCIDEJWGFGE 

623425
 

http://classicalcharterschools.org/
mailto:Y#2J(#W1Z.J#=#)#.ZWJO,DFEQJHE>LDF@GFIKP


WGFKHFDH>VJ>IJ>LGICFD>JLFKJMF>GEDJ>RFCC>JFKHJLIKGEKG 
EFLGJ>GE@JIQJGGEJJFHTJUFGGFKJGGF>JLCF>>FLFC 
QDFMEJIDRVJW,CCWJ@DIEFHE>JFKJEH?LFGFIKFCJ@DINDFM 
QFDMCHJDF>EHJIKJGJIJ@DFKLF@CE>I 
`J0CCJLGFCHDEKJLFKJFLGFEEEJFLFHEMFLJ>?LLE>>JJGEK 
NFEEKJFJDFNIDI?>JFKHJIDNFKFSEHJL?DDFL?C?MVJEQQELGFEE 
GEFLGFKNVJFKHJFJ>GD?LG?DEHJEKEFDIKMEKGT 
`J(EEECI@MEKGJIQJDE>@ELGQ?CVJLIM@F>>FIKFGEV 
@DIH?LGFEEJLFGFSEK>JF>JFJQ?KHFMEKGFCJFFMJIQ 
EH?LFGFIKT 

[FDFFDCEJ; -FNIDI?>JFKHJXDNFKFSEHJC?DDFL?C?MIJUEJDECFEEEJGGFG 
FKJIDNFKFSEHVJLCEFDVJFKHJ>E_?EKGFFCJL?DDFL?C?MVJQ?CCH 
FCFNKEHJJFGGJGGEJCIMMIKJCIDEJFKHJ.EJJ2IDRJWGFGE 
=EFDKFKNJWGFKHFDH>VJQIL?>EHJIKJEK>?DFKNJ>GDIKN 
CFGEDFLHJ>RFCC>JFKJFCCJ>G?HEKG>VJJFCCJDE>GJ>EDEEJGGE 
EH?LFGFIKFCJKEEH>JIQJI?DJGFDNEGJ@I@?CFGFIKTJ-EFHFKN 
F>JGGEJMI>GJFM@IDGFKGJ@FDGJIQJFKJW,CCWJEH?LFGFIKT 
UFGGFKJFJQDFMEJIDRJIQJLCF>>FLFCJEH?LFGFIKJGGFG 
QIL?>E>JDECEKGCE>>CHJIKJCFKN?FNEJHEEECI@MEKGJaJF 
LDFGFLFCJKEEHJIQJI?DJGFDNEGJ@I@?CFGFIKJaJFCCJ>LGICFD> 
DEKEQFGJQDIMJGGDEEJO$PJGI?D>JIQJHFFCHJCFGEDFLH 
FK>GD?LGFIKJFKHJGJIJO;PJGI?D>JIQJHFFCHJMFGG 
FK>GD?LGFIKTJCIK>F>GEKGJJFGGJGGEJ>LGIICH>JMF>>FIKJFKH 
JFGGJGGEJGEKEG>JIQJFJLCF>>FLFCJEH?LFGFIKVJI?DJ>LGICFD> 
JFCCJDEJNFEEKJIKEJO:PJGI?DJIQJLGFDFLGEDJEH?LFGFIK 
FK>GD?LGFIKJ@EDJJEERT 

[FDFFDCEJ$ #QQELGFEEJZEFLGFKNIJZGEJDELD?FGMEKGVJHEEECI@MEKGV 
FKHJDEGEKGFIKJIQJEQQELGFEEJGEFLGED>JF>JLDFGFLFCJGIJGFNG 
>LGICFDJFLGFEEEMEKGTJ#QQELGFEEJGEFLGED>JMFKFNE 
GGEFDJLCF>>DIIMVJRKIJJGGEFDJLIKGEKGVJHEEECI@J>RFCC> 
>E_?EKGFFCCHJIEEDJGFMEVJ?>EJHFGFJ>GDFGENFLFCCHJGI 
FKQIDMJGGEFDJFK>GD?LGFIKVJFKHJHIJJGFGEEEDJFGJGFRE>JGI 
MF*FMFSEJFM@FLGTJZGEDEJF>JKIJ>FKNCEJ\DELD?FGFKN 
>EF>IK]VJFKHJHEEECI@FKNJ>?LLE>>Q?CJLIKKELGFIK>JGI 
>@ELFQFLJLFKHFHFGE>JDE_?FDE>JFJLIKGFK?I?>JEQQIDGJFKH 
GFDNEGEHJF@@DIFLGTJW,CCWJJFCCJDELD?FGJGEFLGED>JQDIM 
FJEFDFEGHJIQJ>I?DLE>VJFKLC?HFKNJLDFGFLFCJKEGJIDRFKN 
JFGGJ>?LGJIDNFKFSFGFIK>JF>JZEFLGJ&IDJ0MEDFLFVJ.EJ 
=EFHED>JQIDJ.EJJWLGIIC>VJ>GDFGENFLJJED>FGEJ@I>GFKN>V 
@DIQE>>FIKFCJ^IDJQFFD>VJFKHJI?GDEFLGJGIJ>ECELGFEE 
D?>FKE>>E>JFKHJFKH?>GDFE>TJWFMFCFDCHVJGEFLGED 
HEEECI@MEKGJF>JFC>IJFJLIKGFK?I?>J@DILE>>TJZGDI?NG 
>?MMEDJIDFEKGFGFIKVJJEERCHJNDFHEJMEEGFKN>V 
MIKGGCHJ>LGIIC'JFHEJMEEGFKN>VJFKHJIKNIFKN 
FKHFEFH?FCJ>E>>FIK>VJGEFLGED>JDEKEQFGJQDIMJIEEDJ:77 
GI?D>JIQJBDIQE>>FIKFCJ(EEECI@MEKGJFKK?FCCHTJZI 
FGGDFLGJFKHJDEGFFKJGGEJ>GDIKNE>GJGEFLGED>VJ>FCFDFE> 
JFCCJDEJ,IJGIJ:7IJGFNGEDJGGFKJGGI>EJIQJGEFLGED>JFK 
.EJJ2IDRJCFGHH>J#*GEKHEHJZFMEJWLGIIC>T 

[FDFFDCEJ+ WGD?LG?DEHJ#KEFDIKMEKGIJUFGGFKJFJHF>LF@CFKEH 
EKEFDIKMEKGVJGEFLGED>JLFKJGEFLGVJFKHJFCCJ>LGICFD> 
LFKJCEFDKTJW,CCWJJFCCJLDEFGEJ@I>FGFEEJ>G?HEKG 

723425 

mailto:EFHED>JQIDJ.EJJWLGIIC>VJ>GDFGENFLJJED>FGEJ@I>GFKN>V
http:JFGGJ>?LGJIDNFKFSFGFIK>JF>JZEFLGJ&IDJ0MEDFLFVJ.EJ


DEGFEFIDJGGDI?NGJMIHECFKNVJE*@CFLFGJDEGFEFIDFC 
FK>GD?LGFIKVJFKHJFJGDFK>@FDEKGJ>EGJIQJE*@ELGFGFIK> 
>GFDEHJJFGGJQFMFCFE>JFGJIDFEKGFGFIK>JFKHJGGDI?NGI?G 
GGEJHEFDTJZGE>EJD?CE>VJHEGFFCEHJFKJGGEJCIHEJIQ 
CIKH?LGVJFKLC?HEJDELINKFGFIKJIQJGGEJ>LGIICH>JLIDE 
EFC?E>JFKHJLCEFDJLIK>E_?EKLE>JQIDJFKQDFLGFIK>T 

[FDFFDCEJ, (EEECI@MEKGJIQJ-E>@ELGQ?CVJCIM@F>>FIKFGEVJFKH 
BDIH?LGFEEJCFGFSEK>IJUEJDECFEEEJGGFGJGGE 
HEEECI@MEKGJIQJDE>@ELGQ?CVJLIM@F>>FIKFGEVJFKH 
@DIH?LGFEEJLFGFSEK>JF>JFJQ?KHFMEKGFCJ@?D@I>EJIQ 
EH?LFGFIKTJZGF>JF>JQ?CCHJLIK>F>GEKGJJFGGJGGEJFHEFC>JIQ 
LCF>>FLFCJEH?LFGFIKTJ0CCJ>LGICFD>JDELEFEEJIKEJGI?DJIQ 
JEERCHJLGFDFLGEDJEH?LFGFIKJ@EDJJEERTJ0>J>LGICFD> 
FLLCFMFGEJGIJI?DJL?CG?DEJIQJ@I>FGFEEJDEGFEFIDJFKH 
LGFDFLGEDVJCE>>JHFDELGJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKHJGEFLGED 
FKGEDEEKGFIKJJFCCJDEJDE_?FDEHTJ0CCJ>LGICFD>JJFCCJ@EDQIDM 
FNE'F@@DI@DFFGEJLIMM?KFGHJ>EDEFLEJDF>EHJIK 
GGEME>J>?LGJF>JGGEJEKEFDIKMEKGJFKHJLFDEJIQJ>EKFID 
LFGFSEK>T 

[FDFFDCEJ< &FMFCHJ#KNFNEMEKGIJUEJEFC?EJI?DJ>LGICFD>JFKHJI?D 
QFMFCFE>VJJGFLGJFDEJ>IJLDFGFLFCJGIJI?DJ>LGICFD>H 
>?LLE>>TJ&IDJHI?KNJLGFCHDEKJGIJ>?LLEEH 
FLFHEMFLFCCHVJGGEJ>LGIICJFKHJ@FDEKG>JM?>GJHEEECI@ 
@I>FGFEEJFKHJLIMM?KFLFGFEEJDECFGFIK>GF@>TJ0CC 
QFMFCFE>JDELEFEEJDEN?CFDJLIMM?KFLFGFIKJDENFDHFKN 
GGEFDJ>LGICFD>HJFLFHEMFLJFKHJDEGFEFIDFCJ@DINDE>>V 
?>FKNJNDFHE>JFKHJGE>GJ>LIDE>JF>JDEKLGMFDR>JQID 
HF>L?>>FIKTJUEJGFEEJFJ&FMFCHJ0HEF>IDHJCI?KLFCJO&0CPV 
JGFLGJ>EDEE>JF>JFJCFFF>IKJDEGJEEKJI?DJ@FDEKG>JFKH 
FHMFKF>GDFGFIKT 

[FDFFDCEJ8 (EEECI@MEKGJIQJ-E>@ELGQ?CVJCIM@F>>FIKFGEVJFKH 
BDIH?LGFEEJCFGFSEK>IJUEJDECFEEEJGGFGJGGE 
HEEECI@MEKGJIQJDE>@ELGQ?CVJLIM@F>>FIKFGEVJFKH 
@DIH?LGFEEJLFGFSEK>JF>JFJQ?KHFMEKGFCJ@?D@I>EJIQ 
EH?LFGFIKTJZGF>JF>JQ?CCHJLIK>F>GEKGJJFGGJGGEJFHEFC>JIQ 
LCF>>FLFCJEH?LFGFIKTJ0CCJ>LGICFD>JDELEFEEJIKEJGI?DJIQ 
JEERCHJLGFDFLGEDJEH?LFGFIKJ@EDJJEERTJ0>J>LGICFD> 
FLLCFMFGEJGIJI?DJL?CG?DEJIQJ@I>FGFEEJDEGFEFIDJFKH 
LGFDFLGEDVJCE>>JHFDELGJFK>GD?LGFIKJFKHJGEFLGED 
FKGEDEEKGFIKJJFCCJDEJDE_?FDEHTJ0CCJ>LGICFD>JJFCCJ@EDQIDM 
FNE'F@@DI@DFFGEJLIMM?KFGHJ>EDEFLEJDF>EHJIK 
GGEME>J>?LGJF>JGGEJEKEFDIKMEKGJFKHJLFDEJIQJ>EKFID 
LFGFSEK>T 

[FDFFDCEJ% O.IJDE>@IK>EP 

[FDFFDCEJA O.IJDE>@IK>EP 

[FDFFDCEJ:7 O.IJDE>@IK>EP 

UVJcYc\ZJE[bYZZ]E[cJY[J}d[EJ~�xJi�K�
 

823425
 

mailto:O.IJDE>@IK>EP
mailto:O.IJDE>@IK>EP
mailto:O.IJDE>@IK>EP


.I 

+;8
 

�VJkb\^ELJLEbvE^JQ[JLWXYYZJyE\bJi�K��K� 

CGELRJFCCJGGFGJF@@CH 

ZDFHE>JWEDEEH YVJ:VJ;VJ$VJ+VJ,VJ<VJ8VJ% 

�KVJ^YELJcXEJLWXYYZJWY[cb\WcJmQcXJ\JWX\bcEbJYbJE^dW\cQY[\Z 

]\[\kE]E[cJYbk\[Qe\cQY[� 

J 

BFNEJ; 

PKVJg\WQZQcQEL 

(IE>JGGEJ>LGIICJMFFKGFFKJIDJI@EDFGEJM?CGF@CEJ>FGE>J 

.IVJ^?>GJIKEJ>FGET 

PiVJLWXYYZJLQcEL 

BCEF>EJCF>GJGGEJ>FGE>JJGEDEJGGEJ>LGIICJJFCCJI@EDFGEJQIDJGGEJ?@LIMFKNJ>LGIICJHEFDT 

BGH>FLFC 
0HHDE>> 

WFGEJ:JO>FME 
F>J@DFMFDH 
>FGEP 

A88J&I*JWGTV 
,DIK*J.2V 
:+7,A 

WFGEJ; 

WFGEJ$ 

BGIKE 
.?MDED 

8%:'%<7' 
+$+7 

(F>GDFLG9CW( 

CW(J:; 

ZDFHE> 
WEDEEHJFG 
WFGE 

Y'% 

WLGIICJFGJ&?CC 
CF@FLFGHJFG 
WFGE 

2E> 

&FLFCFGFE> 
0NDEEMEKG 

(X#J>@FLE 

PiTVJjPlTwlJ�HO�UhlJGNlJMOFGTMGJUFROHSTGUOFJROHJLUGlJKV
 

.FME UIDRJBGIKE 0CGEDKFGEJBGIKE #MFFCJ0HHDE>> 

f23425
 



WLGIICJ=EFHED 

X@EDFGFIKFCJ=EFHED 

CIM@CFFKLE 
CIKGFLG 

CIM@CFFKGJCIKGFLG 

=E>GEDJ=IKN 

YFGGDHKJBFK?>RF 

WFM?ECJUFCHED 

=E>GEDJ=IKN 

SKVJQwJGNlJwMNOOPJOHJTHlJGNlJwMNOOPJwUGlwJMO�POMTGlh� 

2E> 

SiVJjPlTwlJPUwGJGNlJGlHSwJORJIOzHJMzHHlFGJMO�POMTGUOFV
 

(FGEJ>LGIIC 
JFCCJCEFEE 
L?DDEKGJLI' 
CILFGFIK 

WFGEJ: 
O@DFMFDH 
>FGEP 

.90 

WFGEJ; 

WFGEJ$ 

BFNEJ$ 

1>J>LGIIC 
JIDRFKNJJFGG 
.2C(X#JGI 
E*@FKHJFKGI 
L?DDEKG 
>@FLEJ 

.I 

1QJ>IVJCF>GJHEFD 
E*@FK>FIK 
JFCCJILL?DT 

1>J>LGIIC 
JIDRFKNJJFGG 
.2C(X#JGI 
MIEEJGI 
>E@FDFGE 
>@FLEJ 

.I 

1QJ>IVJCF>GJGGE WLGIICJFGJ&?CC 
@DI@I>EH CF@FLFGHJFG 
>@FLEJFKH WFGE 
HEFDJ@CFKKEH 
QIDJMIEE 

2E> 

FKVJmlHlJGNlHlJTFIJHl�UwUOFwJGOJGNlJwMNOOP�wJMNTHGlHJhzHUFuJGNlJi�K��K�JwMNOOP 
IlTH�JnjPlTwlJUFMPzhlJT��HO�lhJOHJ�lFhUFuJSTGlHUTPJTFhJFOF�STGlHUTPJMNTHGlH 
Hl�UwUOFwoV 

OVJ[TSlJTFhJjOwUGUOFJORJQFhU�UhzTPnwoJmNOJWOS�PlGlhJGNlJi�K��K�J\FFzTPJbl�OHGV 

=E>GEDJ=IKNVJ#*EL?GFEEJ(FDELGID 

g23425 

.I 



�VJYzHJwUuFTGzHlwJalPO�JTGGlwGJGNTGJTPPJORJGNlJUFROHSTGUOFJMOFGTUFlhJNlHlUFJUw 

GHzGNRzPJTFhJTMMzHTGlJTFhJGNTGJGNUwJMNTHGlHJwMNOOPJUwJUFJMOS�PUTFMlJ�UGNJTPP 
Tw�lMGwJORJUGwJMNTHGlHxJTFhJ�UGNJTPPJ�lHGUFlFGJglhlHTPxJLGTGlxJTFhJPOMTPJPT�wx 
HluzPTGUOFwxJTFhJHzPlwVJmlJzFhlHwGTFhJGNTGJURJTFIJUFROHSTGUOFJUFJTFIJ�THGJORJGNUw 

Hl�OHGJUwJROzFhJGOJNT�lJallFJhlPUalHTGlPIJSUwHl�HlwlFGlhxJGNTGJ�UPPJMOFwGUGzGl 

uHOzFhwJROHJGNlJHl�OMTGUOFJORJOzHJMNTHGlHVJWNlM�JyELJURJIOzJTuHllJTFhJGNlFJzwl 

GNlJSOzwlJOFJIOzHJjWJOHJGNlJwGIPUwGJOFJIOzHJSOaUPlJhl�UMlJGOJwUuFJIOzHJFTSloV 

blw�OFwlwJLlPlMGlh� 

2E> 

LUuFTGzHlxJXlThJORJWNTHGlHJLMNOOP
 

LUuFTGzHlxJjHlwUhlFGJORJGNlJ_OTHhJORJcHzwGllw
 

^TGl 

;7:<9789;8 

cNTF�JIOzV 

523425 



EFGHIJKJLMFN
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstuvtwrux 

yMzpPu 

OPJQERJSTUVJWXYXEJUEZTUXJ[YU\ 

ZH]^M_`JaJ_MH`bGJcULJ]HJd`eJfMFNJG]JGg`Jh]iGJH`b`FGJQ`dJS]HNJWGaG`JWbg]]fJU`j]HG 
[aH_Jk]HJGg`JbgaHG`HJibg]]fJlW``JgGGjimnnH`j]HGbaH_iPFIi`_Po]^npP 

{|}M~Op~PN�}���NP���R�pO��zP�pM~P��pP����P��OP�pOP}M�pPMP��}���P�pR�~OP|M~SP�~P����PO�P��p�Py�pMNp 
O�RpP���LP�NP��OPM�M��M��p�P��PO}pPNRM�pPR~���SpSh� 

}OORNqttSMOM���NpS�z��tR~�i��p�R}Rj��NO�Sklrrrrrrmlllm 

123421
 

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000058885


 

EFGHIJKJLHMNHOPP
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9<7:= 

>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ789<89<7:= 

BFCEJ: 

LQRSQETTJURVWQXJYZWQUEQJSRW[T 

DEEJFGHHGIJKCJGFLHE?JDEFHEMGJFGDNFGGJKCJJKJGEEJGKHJKEJAGDGFHJDEO@JDEHJFGDJPGFDHJGFJQECEKG?RF@GEGDJSEH 
MEFDGEDJ?MEGGH?JFKHJT“C”„‟RF@GEGDJSEHJMEFDGEDJ?MEGGH?JGKH†‡J•MEGGH?J?EG@HHJHJ?GJBDGCDE??JDGIFDH 
CEFDGEDJ‣GFH?JL†J․@C@?GJ:‥J<7:=‡J…FJGEEJCGFH?JFDEJLF?EHJGKJ?G@HEKGJAEDFGDNFKMEJHFGFJGEFGJGEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJKGGJEF‧EJFMME??JGGJLEFGDEJ․@C@?GJ:‥J<7:=JJ E‡C‡‥JGEEJT“•J․??E??NEKGJDE?@HG? ‥JE‪AHFJK 
GEJ?JJKJGEEJ:7>‫‬R<7:=JBDGCDE??JDGIFDHJ․GGFJKNEKGJGFJ‣GFH‫JMGH@NK‡JDEEJJKFGDNFGJGKJMFKJLE 
@AHFGEHJIEEKJF‧FJHFLHE‡JBHEF?EJMGNAHEGEJFKHJ?@LNJGJKGJHFGEDJGEFKJTG‧ENLEDJ:‥J<7:=‡ 

\]JWYWXE^_YJTU`XEaUJLEQbRQ^WaYEJSRW[T
 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJWnijOlknJSMioP
 

․MFHENJMJ•G@HEKG 
BEDFGDNFKMEJ‣GFH 

‭EF?@DEJGGJHE?‮ 
‟‧FH@FGEJBDGCDE?? 
DGIFDHJ․GGFJKNEKG 
GFJ‣GFH 

‣GFHJRJ‭EG‥JBFDGJFHH† 
‭EG‥JGDJTGGJ‭EG 

․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ: 

•MEGHFD?JIJHH 
HENGK?GDFGE 
ADGFJMJEKM†JJK 
DEFHJKC‡ 

 F J‱7′JGFJFHH 
?MEGHFD?JIEGJEF‧E 
LEEKJEKDGHHEHJFG 
•PCC•J…JFGDJ<JF@HH 
FMFHENJMJ†EFD?JGD 
NGDEJIJHHJ?MGDEJFG 
>E‧EHJ″JGDJEJCEED 
GKJGEEJ•GFGE 
‟KCHJ?EJ>FKC@FCE 
․DG?JDE?GJ ‟>․ ‡ 
 L JGEEJ•PCC•J… 
F‧EDFCEJ?MGDEJGK 
GEEJ‟>․JIJHHJE‪MEEH 
GEEJF‧EDFCEJ?MGDE 
GFJJG?JEGNEJHJ?GDJMG 
FKHJGFJGEEJCJG†JF?JF 
IEGHE‥JFGDJEFME 
CDFHE‡J 
 M JLECJKKJKCJJK 
CDFHEJ<‥JEFME 

DEEJ<7:=JT“•J‟>․ 
F??E??NEKGJHFGFJJ? 
KGGJ†EGJF‧FJHFLHE‡ 

…FJTGGJ‭EG‥J”E?MDJLE 
‟FFGDG?J•MEGGHJ JHH 
DF‰E 

123425
 

mailto:GEJ?JJKJGEEJ�<7:�R<7:=JBDGCDE??JDGIFDHJ.GGFJKNEKGJGFJ�GFH�JMGH@NK�JDEEJJKFGDNFGJGKJMFKJLE
mailto:MEGGHJIJHHJKGGJEF�EJFMME??JGGJLEFGDEJ.@C@?GJ:..J<7:=JJ�E�C�..JGEEJT��J.??E??NEKGJDE?@HG?�
mailto:CEFDGEDJ�GFH?JL�J.@C@?GJ


•MEGHFD?JIJHH 
HENGK?GDFGE ․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ< ADGFJMJEKM†JJK 
NFGEENFGJM? 

•MEGHFD?JIJHH 
HENGK?GDFGE ․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ″ ADGFJMJEKM†JJK 

MGEGDG 
GFJ•PCC•J…J?MEGHFD? 
IJHHJJNADG‧E 
GEEJDJHJGEDFM†J?MGDE? 
L†JFKJF‧EDFCEJGF 
″JAEDMEKGJHE?JAED 
†EFD‥JF? 
NEF?@DEHJL†JGEE 
DEDDFTG‧FJGDJ•GFGE 
DE?G‡ 

F J‱7′JGFJFHH 
?MEGHFD?JIEG 
EF‧EJLEEKJEKDGHHEH 
FGJ•PCC•J… 
FGDJ<JF@HHJFMFHENJM 
†EFD?JGDJNGDE 
IJHHJ?MGDEJFGJ>E‧EHJ″ 
GDJEJCEEDJGKJGEE 
•GFGEJ‭FGEENFGJM? 
DE?G‡ 
 L JGEEJ•PCC•J… 
F‧EDFCEJ?MGDEJGK 
GEEJ•GFGE 
‭FGEENFGJM?JDE?G 
IJHHJE‪MEEHJGEE 
F‧EDFCEJ?MGDEJGFJJG? 
EGNE 
HJ?GDJMGJFKHJGFJGEE 
CJG†JF?JFJIEGHE‥JFGD 
EFMEJCDFHE‡ 
 M JLECJKKJKCJJK 
CDFHEJ<‥JEFME 
MGEGDG 
GFJ•PCC•J…J?MEGHFD? 
IJHHJJNADG‧EJGEEJD 
NFGEJ?MGDE?JL†JFK 
F‧EDFCEJGFJ″ 
AEDMEKGJHE?JAED 
†EFD‥JF?JNEF?@DEH 
L† 
GEEJDEDDFTG‧FJGD 
•GFGEJDE?G‡ 

 F J=7′JGFJFHH 
FG@DGEJCDFHE 
?MEGHFD?JIEGJEF‧E 
LEEKJEKDGHHEHJFG 
•PCC•J…JFGDJ<JF@HH 
FMFHENJMJ†EFD?JGD 
NGDEJIJHHJ?MGDEJFG 
>E‧EHJ″JGDJEJCEED 
GKJGEEJ•GFGE 
•MJEKMEJDE?G‡ 
 L J=7′JGFJFHH 

DEEJ<7:=JT“•J‭FGE 
F??E??NEKGJHFGFJJ? 
KGGJ†EGJF‧FJHFLHE‡ 

DEEJ<7:=JT“• 
•MJEKME 
․??E??NEKGJHFGFJJ? 

623425
 



 

?MJEKME‡
 EJCEGEJCDFHE KGGJ†EGJF‧FJHFLHE‡ 
?MEGHFD?JIEGJEF‧E 
LEEKJEKDGHHEHJFG 
•PCC•J…JFGDJ<JF@HH 
FMFHENJMJ†EFD?JGD 
NGDEJIJHHJ?MGDEJFG 
>E‧EHJ″JGDJEJCEED 
GKJGEEJ•GFGE 
•MJEKMEJDE?G‡ 

․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ; 

․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ‬ 

․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ= 

․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ8 

․MFHENJMJ‣GFHJ‱ 

c]JXMJpiqOJlMHOJinijOlknJNMioPJGMJijjr 

TG 

K]JXMJpiqOJlMHOJinijOlknJNMioPJGMJijjr 

TG 

BFCEJ< 

s]JRQSWa_-WU_RaW[JSRW[T 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP
 

„DCFKJSFGJGKFHJ‣GFH ‭EF?@DEJGGJHE?‮ 
‟‧FH@FGEJBDGCDE?? 

‣GFHJRJ‭EG‥JBFDGJFHH† 
‭EG‥JGDJTGGJ‭EG 

 F JDEEJF‧EDFCE 
HFJH† 
FGGEKHFKMEJDFGEJIJHH 
NEEG 

 F J‭EG‡J•PCC•J… 
EFHJFKJF‧EDFCE 
HFJH†JFGGEKHFKMEJGF 
‴=′JJKJ<7:‬R<7:=‡ 
 L J‭EG‡J•PCC•J… 
DEMEJ‧EHJ‬‱‱ 
‵JKHEDCFDGEK 
?G@HEKG 

…FJTGGJ‭EG‥J”E?MDJLE 
‟FFGDG?J•MEGGHJ JHH 
DF‰E 

723425
 



 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:
 

„DCJ‣GFHJ<
 

„DCJ‣GFHJ″
 

„DCJ‣GFHJ;
 

„DCJ‣GFHJ‬
 

•PCC•J…JIJHH 
HENGK?GDFGEJ?GDGKC 
FKK@FHJFGGEKHFKME 
FKHJEKDGHHNEKG‡ 

•PCC•J…JIJHHJADG‧JHE 
?MEGHFD?JIJGEJFJ?FFE 
HEFDKJKC 
EK‧JDGKNEKGJIJGE 
?GDGKC 
MGNN@KJMFGJGKJGK 
?MEGHFD 
FMEJE‧ENEKG 
LEGIEEKJEGNE 
FKHJ?MEGGH‡ 

GDJE‪MEEHJ‴‬′ 
EFMEJ†EFD‡ 
 L JGEEJ•PCC•J… 
IFJGJKCJHJ?GJIJHH 
E‪MEEHJ:‡‬ 
FAAHJMFGJGK?JAED 
F‧FJHFLHEJ?EFG‡ 
 M J•PCC•J…JIJHH 
DEGFJKJJG? 
?MEGHFD?JFGJFK 
FKK@FHJDFGE 
GFJ‴7′JGDJNGDE 
H@DJKCJGEE 
GEDNJGFJJG?JMEFDGED‡ 

 F J‱‬′JGFJ•PCC•J… 
AFDEKG?JGEDG@CEJGEE 
T“CJ”EAFDGNEKGJGF 
‟H@MFGJGK‷? 
>EFDKJKC 
‟K‧JDGKNEKG 
•@D‧E†JIJHH 
MGK?JHEDJ•PCC•J…JF 
‸?FFE‹J?MEGGH‡ 
 L J‱‬′JGFJ•PCC•J… 
AFDEKG?JGEDG@CEJGEE 
T“C 
”EAFDGNEKGJGF 
‟H@MFGJGK‷? 
>EFDKJKC 
‟K‧JDGKNEKG 
•@D‧E†JIJHHJJKHJMFGE 
?GDGKC 
MGNN@KJMFGJGK 
LEGIEEKJ?MEGGH 
FKHJEGNE 
DECFDHJKC 
?MEGHFD 
FMEJE‧ENEKG‡ 

FAAHJMFGJGK?JFGDJ=7 
F‧FJHFLHEJ?EFG?‡ 
•PCC•J…‶?JIFJGJKC 
HJ?GJFGDJ‵JKHEDCFDGEK 
JKMH@HEHJ‬<‱ 
?G@HEKG?‥JIEJMEJFFD 
E‪MEEH?JGEEJ:‡‬ 
DFGJG‡ 
 M J•PCC•J… 
DEGFJKEHJ‱‱′JGFJJG? 
?MEGHFD?JJKJ<7:;R 
<7:‬‡J EJHGJKGG 
†EGJEF‧EJDEGEKGJGK 
HFGFJFGDJ<7:‬R 
<7:=‡JDEJ?JCGFHJIF? 
KGG 
NEG‡ 

•PCC•J…JNEF?@DE? 
?@MME??JGGIFDH? 
GEJ?JCGFHJGEDG@CE 
GEEJKEIJ›DFNEIGD‰ 
FGDJ‣DEFGJ•MEGGH 
QEAGDG‡J※@E?GJGK 
HE‧EHJHFGFJJ?JKGGJ†EG 
F‧FJHFLHE‡ 

e]JXMJIM/JpiqOJlMHOJMHNiFk.iGkMFioJNMioPJGMJijjr 

 TGJDE?AGK?E  

823425 



 

 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP
 

„DCFKJSFGJGKFHJ‣GFH ‭EF?@DEJ‭EG‥JBFDGJFHH† …FJTGGJ‭EG‥J”E?MDJLEJRJHFG‣ GGJHE?‮ 
‟‧FH@FGEJBDGCDE?? ‭EG‥JGDJTGGJ‭EG ‟FFGDG?J•MEGGHJ JHH 

DF‰E 

„DCJ‣GFHJ= 

„DCJ‣GFHJ8 

„DCJ‣GFHJ‱ 

„DCJ‣GFHJ‴ 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:7 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:: 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:< 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:″ 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:; 

„DCJ‣GFHJ:‬ 

g]Jb_aWaY_W[JSRW[T
 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJbkFiFnkioJSMioP
 

›JKFKMJFHJ‣GFH? 

•PCC•J…JIJHH
 
HENGK?GDFGE
 
FJH@MJFD†
 

›JKFKMJFHJ‣GFHJ: DE?AGK?JLJHJG†JJK 
NFKFCJKCJA@LHJM 
FKHJADJ‧FGE 
DE?G@DME?‡ 

‭EF?@DEJGGJHE?‮ 
‟‧FH@FGEJBDGCDE?? 

 F J•PCC•J…JIJHHJ@?E 
‣EKEDFHH† 
․MMEAGEH 
․MMG@KGJKC 
BDFMGJME?J ‣․․B  
JKHEAEKHEKGH† 
‧EDJFJEHJGEDG@CEJFK 
FKK@FH 
E‪GEDKFHJF@HJG‡ 
 L J•PCC•J…JIJHH 
ADGH@MEJFJKFKMJFH 
DEAGDG? 
HENGK?GDFGJKC 
FJ?MFHJGDFK?AFDEKM† 
FKHJ?G@KH 
FJKFKMJFHJ?GFKHJKC‡ 

‣GFHJRJ‭EG‥JBFDGJFHH† 
‭EG‥JGDJTGGJ‭EG 

•PCC•J…JGAEDFGE?JJK 
FMMGDHFKMEJIJGEJJG? 
›JKFKMJFHJBGHJME? 
FKHJBDGMEH@DE? 
IEJMEJJ?JFAADG‧EH 
L†JGEEJPGFDHJGF 
DD@?GEE?JFKH 
G‧ED?EEKJL†JFK 
JKHEAEKHEKG 
F@HJGJKCJFJDN‡JDEE 
<7:‬RJ<7:= 
FJKFKMJFHJF@HJGJIJHH 
GMM@DJJKJ•EAGENLED 
<7:=‡ 

…FJTGGJ‭EG‥J”E?MDJLE 
‟FFGDG?J•MEGGHJ JHH 
DF‰E 

f23425
 



›JKFKMJFHJ‣GFHJ< 

›JKFKMJFHJ‣GFHJ″ 

›JKFKMJFHJ‣GFHJ; 

›JKFKMJFHJ‣GFHJ‬ 

523425
 



EFGHIJKJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstuvturwv 

xMypPw 

FGHIHJGIKLMHNOPQIRGOHL 
STGULGHNOPQIRGOHLGULPVWXGPVYLONLZ[[LJTIPRVPLUJTOOKU\L]PO^GYVLRTVLNOKKO_GH`LQVIUXPVULONLNGUJIK 
aVPNOPQIHJVLONLRTVLJTIPRVPLUJTOOKLGHLZaaVHYGbLcLdSORIKLebaVHYGRXPVULIHYLZYQGHGURPIRG^V 

ebaVHYGRXPVUL]VPLfTGKYgh 
J 

VWJXYGZUJELMNFOPGQHNRJ[NHJSTPUO 

z{P|M}|Q}MOpP\XYGZUJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO]POM~pPO{OM}Pp�Rp�S�OQ�pNP���{�PO�pPQ�MQS�OpSPurw��wv 
�|�pSQ}pP{�P�Q�|O�{�M}P��Rp�NpN�PM�SPS���SpP��PO�pP�pM�Pp�SP�z�PNOQSp�OPp��{}}�p�O�P���Opyp�NP��}�� 
M{PS{}}M�PN�y�NP{�P|{��MN�� 

NOPQRSSTUQSVWXOYZ[PVOWSOWSPUQS\]UQ^_`QSOXSa_W]PVOW[`SbcdQWeQeSOWSd[fQeSghigjSOXSPUQ 
k_^VPSl_V^QS][WSUQ`dSe]UOO`eS`O][PQSPUQS[ZO_WPeSPOS_eQSVWSPUQSPmOSdQYSd_dV`S][`]_`[PVOWeR 
UPPdRnnmmmodhpoWqeQ^ofOrnde]nk_^VPl_V^QoUPZ` 
P 

L��pPwqPz{OM}P��Rp�S�OQ�pN 

L��pPuqPOpM�P��SP�z�PNOQSp�OPp��{}}�p�O 

L��pPNqPQ���SpPL��pPwP��PL��pPu 

vNwNws� 

Pwr 

w�NRS 

^WJ_O`PFPRGHZGPaNJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO 

z{P|M}|Q}MOpP\_O`PFPRGHZGPaNJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUObPz{P|M}|Q}MOpPTUS����NO�MO��pP��Rp�S�OQ�pN 
Rp�PV��}SWP���NOPabbPO{ypO�p�PO�pP�{}}{X��yq 

w�PzM~pPO�pP�p}p�M�OPR{�O�{�P��{�PO�pPYRp�N{��p}PNp���|pNP|{NOZP�{XPM�SPO�pPY�M�Myp�p�OPM�S 
yp�p�M}ZP|{}Q��P���{�PO�pPQ�MQS�OpSPurw��wvP�|�pSQ}pP{�P�Q�|O�{�M}P��Rp�NpN� 

u�PU��P|{�O�M|OpSPMS����NO�MO��pt�M�Myp�p�OP�ppPRM�SPO{P{O�p�P{�yM��[MO�{�NP{�P|{�R{�MO�{�N 

N�PzM~pPO�pPO{OM}P��{�PM�{�pPM�SPS���SpP�OP��PO�pP�pM��p�SP�z�Pp��{}}�p�O�PPz�pP�p}p�M�OPR{�O�{�PO�MO
�QNOP�pP��|}QSpSP��PO��NP|M}|Q}MO�{�P�NPSp���pSPMNP�{}}{XNq 

123425
 

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html


US����NO�MO��pP��Rp�S�OQ�pNqPPUS����NO�MO�{�PM�SP�M�Myp�p�OP{�PO�pP|�M�Op�PN|�{{}P��|}QSpNPO�p
M|O���O�pNPM�SPRp�N{��p}P{�PO�pP{���|pNP{�PO�pP|��p�PN|�{{}P{���|p�\PO�pP���M�|pP{�P�QN��pNNP{���|pN\ 
N|�{{}P{Rp�MO�{�NPRp�N{��p}\PSMOMP�M�Myp�p�OPM�SP�pR{�O��y\P�Q�M�P�pN{Q�|pN\POp|��{}{y�\PpO|�P�O
M}N{P��|}QSpNPO�{NpPMS����NO�MO��pPM�SP�M�Myp�p�OPNp���|pNPR�{��SpSP��P{O�p�P{�yM��[MO�{�NP{�
|{�R{�MO�{�NP{�P�p�M}�P{�PO�pP|�M�Op�PN|�{{}P�{�PX��|�PO�pP|�M�Op�PN|�{{}PRM�NPMP�ppP{�P{O�p�
|{�Rp�NMO�{��PPQ{P�{OP��|}QSpPO�pP�z�P{�PRp�N{��p}PX�{NpP�{}pP�NPO{PS��p|O}�PNQRR{�OPO�p 
��NO�Q|O�{�M}PR�{y�M��PP 

NOPQeRSS 
TUQSVWXOYZ[PVOWSOWSPUQS\]UQ^_`QSOXSa_W]PVOW[`SbcdQWeQeSOWSd[fQeSghigjSOXSPUQSk_^VP 
l_V^QS][WSUQ`dSe]UOO`eS`O][PQSPUQS[ZO_WPeSPOS_eQSVWSPUQSPmOSdQYSd_dV`S][`]_`[PVOWeR 
UPPdRnnmmmodhpoWqeQ^ofOrnde]nk_^VPl_V^QoUPZ`oS 
E`MUYINNJcNFNdPGJeYRGRJYHJNLMNFOPGQHNRJRTYQUOJFYGJcNJHNMYHGNOJPFJGTNJZcYaN 
eZUeQUZGPYFRW 

L��pPwqP]p}p�M�OPxp�N{��p}P�p���|pNPV{NOP�]{X� 

L��pPuqP^M�Myp�p�OPM�SP_p�p�M}PV{NOP�V{}Q��� 

L��pPNqP�Q�P{�PL��pPwPM�SPL��pPu 

L��pP�qPQ���SpPL��pPNP��PO�pPOpM�P��SP�z�PNOQSp�O 
p��{}}�p�O 

r 

wwuvsPv 

wwuvsPv 

usPS 

TU[WsSqO_o
 

523425
 

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html


EFGHIJKLJMNOPGQOJRGLGQSQFGT
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9:7<= 

>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ<79<89:7<= 

BECEDG?EJFGCHIJJFDHJK@LLFMNJKIJJF@GONDPQEHJ?RONNM?J?ON@MHJEDGEDJGOEJLPDFDRPFMJRNDGFRGJPDLNDSFGPND 
DET@E?GEHJFDHJ@AMNFHJGOEJPDHEAEDHEDGJF@HPGNDU?JDEANDGJFDHJPDGEDDFMJRNDGDNM?JDEANDG?JF?JNDE 
RNSVPDEHJLPMEW 

XFCEJ< 

RUVWWXJYLTQOJZPTULXJ[WFGLUGJ\F]WHSLGPWF 

YRONNMJKF?EHJYP?RFM 
CNDGFRGJFFSE 

YRONNMJKF?EHJYP?RFM 
CNDGFRGJJSFPM 

YRONNMJKF?EHJYP?RFM 
CNDGFRGJXONDE 

YFS@EMJZPMHED 

MNOPGJZPHSJ[WFGLUGJ\F]WHSLGPWF 

YRONNMJY@HPG 
CNDGFRGJFFSE 

YRONNMJY@HPG 
CNDGFRGJJSFPM 

YRONNMJY@HPG 
CNDGFRGJXONDE 

GEFD?JZNDMPDCJZPGO 
NOP?JY@HPGJYPDS 

O@?JYFMPVF = 

\]JM^^XPUL_XQ` 

I@G?N@DREH 
YPDFDRPFM 
YEDQPRE?JYPDS 
FFSE 

I@G?N@DREH 
YPDFDRPFM 
YEDQPRE?JJSFPM 

I@G?N@DREH 
YPDFDRPFM 
YEDQPRE?JXONDE 

COFDGEDJYRONNM 
K@?PDE?? 
RFDFCESEDG 
SDRW 

I@G?N@DREH 
YPDFDRPFM 
YEDQPRE? 
CNDGFRG 

GEFD?JZNDMPDC
 
ZPGOJNOP?JYPDS
 

<7 

aXQLTQJN^XWLOJLTJWFQJUWS_PFQOJ]PXQ` 

LbJGVQJPFOQ^QFOQFGJLNOPGWHcTJHQ^WHGJWFJ]PFLFUPLXJTGLGQSQFGTJLFOJFWGQTdJLFOJ 
_bJHQ^WHGTJWFJPFGQHFLXJUWFGHWXTJWeQHJ]PFLFUPLXJHQ^WHGPFfJLFOJUWS^XPLFUQ 

123425
 



OGGA?I99DU?EHXR?NXDEANDG?WLM@PHDEQPESWRNS9SEHPF9F??EG?9?@DQEUX@AMNFH?9TW77<9=:8=TP8X 
Y8SZDBOOJV9YKCV:7SV:7YGV:7<PX<=V:7Y@HPGV:7BEANDGWAHL 

523425
 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84001/6276857-F7wWrRhhE3/SBC%20I%20FY%2015-16%20Audit%20Report.pdf


 
 

  
 

_________ 
 

   
   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

156 WEST 56TH STREET
 

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019 


TEL: (212) 957-3600 

FAX: (212) 957-3696 


September 21, 2016 

To the Board of Trustees and Management 
South Bronx Classical Charter School  
977 Fox Street 
Bronx, NY 10459 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of South Bronx Classical Charter School (the 
“School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Audit Committee, Board of 
Trustees, The Department of Education of the City of New York, The State Education Department of the State 
University of New York, and others within the School, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate your cooperation and the assistance we received during the course of our audit. 

New York, New York 
September 21, 2016 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 



 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


CONTENTS 

PAGE 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1 - 2 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 


Statements of financial position 3 


Statements of activities 4 


Statements of functional expenses 5 


Statements of cash flows 6 


Notes to financial statements 7 - 14 


IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 15 - 16 




   
 

  
  

_________ 
 

   
   

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

156 WEST 56TH STREET
 

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019
 

TEL: (212) 957-3600 

FAX: (212) 957-3696 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Bronx Classical Charter School (the 
“School”) (a not-for-profit corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 
30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the School’s 2015 financial statements, and our report dated September 4, 
2015, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion, the 
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been 
derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 
21, 2016, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, New York 
September 21, 2016 



              
                      
                 
            
              

                    
                        

                    
                                
                    

                                    

              
                    
              

SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 

JUNE 30, 2016 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Due from related parties 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total current assets 

2016 

91,790$ 
3,430,824 

228,743 
1,113,021 

27,247 
4,891,625 

$ 

2015 

94,597 
4,209,403 

91,554 
339,556 
51,843 

4,786,953 

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 
and amortization of $630,444 and $680,210, respectively 

Restricted cash 
256,670 
72,932 

318,287 
71,824 

TOTAL ASSETS 5,221,227$ $ 5,177,064 

LIABILITIES AND UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 
Refundable advances 

Total liabilities 

83,903$ 
373,696 

-
457,599 

$ 178,270 
344,035 

4,846 
527,151 

Contingency - -

Unrestricted net assets: 
Undesignated 
Board-designated for facility fund 

Total unrestricted net assets 

4,463,628 
300,000 

4,763,628 

4,349,913 
300,000 

4,649,913 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 5,221,227$ $ 5,177,064 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
(with summarized comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2015) 

2016 2015 
Revenue and support: 

State and local per pupil operating revenue 5,912,330$ $ 5,201,704 
Federal grants 292,891 237,405 
State and city grants 31,038 27,163 
Contributions 140,675 25,125 
Investment (loss) income, net (2,118) 5,774 
Other income 52,585 2,505 

Total revenue and support 6,427,401 5,499,676 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Regular education 4,331,953 3,906,451 
Special education 854,891 719,127 

Total program services 5,186,844 4,625,578 
Management and general 1,126,842 1,095,163 

Total expenses 6,313,686 5,720,741 

Changes in unrestricted net assets 113,715 (221,065) 

Unrestricted net assets - beginning of year 4,649,913 4,870,978 

Unrestricted net assets - end of year 4,763,628$ $ 4,649,913 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
 
(with summarized comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2015)
 

2016 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 
Management 
and General Total 2015 

Personnel services costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and staff 

25 
44 

8 
77 

313,500$ 
2,355,294 

-
2,668,794 

-$ 313,500$ 673,130$ 
606,786 2,962,080 -

- - 79,240 
606,786 3,275,580 752,370 

$ 986,630 
2,962,080 

79,240 
4,027,950 

$ 939,055 
2,925,990 

67,963 
3,933,008 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Legal services 
Accounting/audit services 
Other purchased/Professional/Consulting services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Supplies/Materials 
Equipment/Furnishing 
Staff development 
Marketing/Recruitment 
Technology 
Food services 
Student services 
Office expense 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other 

525,900 
80,293 

-
-

349,041 
23,574 
26,216 

114,240 
4,805 

128,123 
24,491 
23,449 
17,544 

116,288 
118,399 

80,010 
30,786 

119,570 
18,256 

-
-

8,545 
5,360 
5,961 

13,741 
1,092 

-
5,568 
5,331 
1,648 

10,921 
26,920 
18,191 

7,001 

645,470 
98,549 

-
-

357,586 
28,934 
32,177 

127,981 
5,897 

128,123 
30,059 
28,780 
19,192 

127,209 
145,319 

98,201 
37,787 

148,259 
22,636 
21,821 
20,250 
61,624 

6,646 
7,391 
6,364 
1,355 

-
6,904 
6,611 

-
-

33,378 
22,556 

8,677 

793,729 
121,185 

21,821 
20,250 

419,210 
35,580 
39,568 

134,345 
7,252 

128,123 
36,963 
35,391 
19,192 

127,209 
178,697 
120,757 

46,464 

692,833 
123,391 

7,252 
20,250 

228,351 
19,060 
37,746 

109,867 
7,182 

92,809 
43,738 
23,819 
14,345 
69,727 

102,851 
143,819 

50,693 

Total expenses $ 4,331,953 854,891$ 5,186,844$ $ 1,126,842 $ 6,313,686 $ 5,720,741 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
(with summarized comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2015) 

2016 2015 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Changes in unrestricted net assets $ 113,715 $ (221,065) 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in unrestricted net assets to 

net cash (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 120,757 143,819 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 21,841 -
Amortization of discount 14,768 12,792 

Changes in certain assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in grants and contracts receivable (137,189) 31,702 
(Increase) in due from related parties (773,465) (339,556) 
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets 24,596 58,877 
(Decrease) Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses (94,367) 39,580 
Increase in accrued payroll and payroll taxes 29,661 105,326 
(Decrease) in refundable advances (4,846) (18,193) 

NET CASH (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (684,529) (186,718) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of investments (3,595,592) (4,499,067) 
Proceeds from maturity of investments 4,359,403 4,449,785 
Purchases of property and equipment (80,981) (61,183) 
(Increase) in restricted cash (1,108) (177) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 681,722 (110,642) 

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,807) (297,360) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 94,597 391,957 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 91,790$ $ 94,597 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

     Nature of Organization 
     South Bronx Classical Charter School (the "School") is a New York State, not-for-profit 

educational corporation that was incorporated on October 7, 2005 to operate a charter 
school pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School 
was granted a provisional charter on October 7, 2005, valid for a term of five years and 
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. During 2015, the Board of Regents extended the School’s charter for an additional 
four-year term expiring on June 30, 2019. The School's mission is to provide its students 
with a solid foundation for academic success, through achievement that exceeds citywide 
averages and meets or exceeds New York State standards and national norms in all 
curriculum areas tested, especially in mathematics and language arts. The School provided 
education to approximately 410 students in grades kindergarten through eighth in the 
2015-2016 academic year. 

     The School shares space with a New York City public school beginning in August 2006. 
The School occupies approximately 28,500 square feet on two floors of a public school 
building. The School also shares the gymnasium, auditorium, and cafeteria with the public 
school which approximate 5,000 square feet. The School is not responsible for rent, 
utilities, custodial services, maintenance, and school safety services other than security 
related to the School’s programs that take place outside the district’s school day. The 
Board of Trustees has designated $300,000 as a facility fund to be available to meet future 
needs of the School. 

     Food and Transportation 
The New York City Department of Education provides free lunches directly to some of the 
School’s students. Such costs are not included in these financial statements. The School 
covers the unreimbursed cost of lunches for children not entitled to the free lunches. The 
Office of Pupil Transportation provides free transportation to the majority of the students 
during the district’s school days. 

     Tax  Status
     The School is exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal 

Revenue Code as a School described in Section 501(c)(3) and a similar provision under 
New York State income tax laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is 
not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible 
contributions as provided in section 170(b)(l)(A)(ii). The School is subject to income 
taxes only on net unrelated business income. The School did not have net unrelated 
business income for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 1 -	 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

     Tax Status (Continued) 
The School’s accounting policy provides that a tax expense or benefit from an uncertain 
tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be 
sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation 
processes, based on the technical merits. The School has no uncertain tax position 
resulting in an accrual of tax expense or benefit. 

IRS Forms 990 filed by the School are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue 
Service up to three years from the extended due date of each return. Forms 990 filed by 
the School are no longer subject to examination for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 
and prior. 

     Basis  of  Presentation  
The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
The financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (“FASB”) in its Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 958-205 
which provides guidance for the classification of net assets. The amounts for each of the 
three classes of net assets are based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions described as follows: 

Unrestricted 
Net assets of the School whose use has not been restricted by an outside donor or by 
law. They are available for any use in carrying out the operations of the School. 

Temporarily Restricted 
Temporarily restricted net assets of the School represent those amounts that have 
been limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire with the passage of 
time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the School. When such 
stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified 
to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities, as net assets 
released from restrictions. 

Permanently Restricted 
Permanently restricted net assets of the School result from contributions whose use 
has been permanently limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Such assets include 
contributions required to be invested in perpetuity, the income from which is 
available to support charitable purposes designated by the donors. 

The School had no temporarily or permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 
2015. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 1 -	 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

     Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Revenue and Support 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, 
in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as 
temporarily restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted 
contributions and grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are 
recorded as unrestricted revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at 
their estimated fair value. 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status 
and based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are 
recorded when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

     Refundable  Advances
     The School records grant revenue as refundable advances until it is expended for the 

purpose of the grant, at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

     Cash and Cash Equivalents 
     The School consider all highly liquid financial instruments purchased with a maturity of 

three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk 
are cash and cash equivalents. The School places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit 
in what it believes to be highly credited financial institutions. Cash balances may exceed 
the FDIC insured levels of $250,000 per institution at various times during the year. At 
June 30, 2016 account balances did not exceed insured levels. The School believes that 
there is little risk in any losses and has not experienced any losses in such accounts. 

Restricted Cash
     Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for 

legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution should it occur. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 1 -	 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

     Property and Equipment 
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are 
expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government funding, 
whereas the government agency retains legal title to the long lived asset is expensed as 
incurred. Depreciation and amortization is provided on the straight line method over the 
estimated useful lives as follows:

      Furniture and fixtures 7 years
      Computers and other equipment 3 and 5 years 
      Software  5  years
      Website  3  years
      Leasehold  improvements Useful life or related lease 

     Comparative  Financial  Information
     The accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses are presented with 

summarized comparative information. Such prior year information is not presented by net 
asset class in the statements of activities or by functional category in the statements of 
functional expenses. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the 
School's 2015 financial statements from which the summarized information was derived. 

     Reclassifications 
Certain 2015 accounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 financial statement 
presentation. The reclassifications have no effect on 2015 total assets, liabilities, net assets 
and changes in net assets. 

NOTE 2 -	 INVESTMENTS 

Investments held by the School consist of the following at June 30,: 

2016 
 Cost Basis  Market Value 

     Unrestricted:
      Money Market $ 1,241 $ 1,241 
      U.S.  Treasury  Notes	 3,444,351 3,429,583 

$ 3,445,592 $ 3,430,824 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

2015 
 Cost Basis  Market Value 

     Unrestricted:
      Money  Market $ 309,442 $ 309,442 

U.S. Treasury Bills  	3,897,025 3,899,961 

$ 	4,206,467 $ 4,209,403 

The following schedule summarizes investment (loss) income for the years ended June 
30,:

 2016 2015 
      Interest  from  U.S.  Treasury investments $ 11,189 $ 16,428 
      Interest  from  other bank accounts  1,461 2,138 
      Amortization of discount (14,768) (12,792) 

$ (2,118) $ 5,774 

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value. 
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820-10 are described as follows: 

	 Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices 
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the plan has the 
ability to access. 

	 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly including 
inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. 

	 Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and 
significant to the fair value measurement. 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is 
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs. 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

The primary uses of fair value measures in the School’s financial statements are: 

	 initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment assets 
and unconditional promises to give. 

	 recurring measurement of investments. 

The School’s investments at June 30, 2016 and 2015, consist of U.S. Treasury Notes, 
Bills, and Money Market accounts which are classified as level 1 in the fair value 
hierarchy. 

NOTE 4 - GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE 

     Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal grants, state, and city entitlements and 
grants. The School expects to collect these receivables within one year. 

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

     Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30,: 

2016 2015 
      Furniture  and  fixtures $ 234,456 $ 230,414 
      Computers and other equipment 286,870  383,127 
      Software  - 19,168
      Website 49,875 49,875 
      Leasehold improvements  315,913 315,913 

887,114  998,497 
      Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (630,444)  (680,210) 

$ 	  256,670 $ 318,287 

During the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the School disposed of assets resulting in 
a (loss) of $(21,841) and $-0-, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense was 
$120,757 and $143,819 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursements. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

- 12 -



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
  
  

 
        

 

 
 

  
  

 
        
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 7 - REVENUE CONCENTRATION 


The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the New York 
City Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or 
eliminating these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 

NOTE 8 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSE 

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. Expenses 
related to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting services on the 
basis of periodic time and expense studies. Management and general expense includes 
those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function, but 
provide for the overall support and direction of the School. 

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The School is affiliated with two charter schools: South Bronx Classical Charter School 
II (“SBCCS II”), organized on June 19, 2012, and South Bronx Classical Charter 
School III (“SBCCS III”), organized on November 18, 2014, (collectively “the related 
charter schools”). The related charter schools are New York State not-for-profit 
education corporations that share common management and Board members with the 
School. 

For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School shares operating expenses 
with the related charter schools. These operating expenses include, but not limited to 
salaries, benefits, and start-up expenses. The School billed the following related charter 
schools for shared operational expenses for the years ended June 30,:

 2016 2015 
      SBCCS  II  $ 467,985 $ 297,577 
      SBCCS  III  290,323 120,605 

$  758,308 $ 418,182 

The net balance due from the related charter schools consist of the following at June 30,: 

2016 2015 
      SBCCS  II  $ 231,095 $ 218,951 
      SBCCS  III  881,926 120,605 

$1,113,021 $ 339,556 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2016 

(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015) 


NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN 


The School maintains a pension plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 401(k) for the 
benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provided matching 
contributions of 4% to the plan. The amount charged for matching contributions to this 
plan amounted to $121,185 and $123,391 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. 

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The School has evaluated its subsequent events through September 21, 2016, the date the 
accompanying financial statements were available to be issued. The School had no 
material events requiring disclosure except for as noted below. 

South Bronx Classical Charter School I, II, and III merged into a single legal entity under 
South Bronx Classical Charter School II, which serves as the sole surviving education 
corporation. The plan of merger was approved by the New York State Education 
Department Board of Regents on June 20, 2016, and became effective for financial 
purposes on July 1, 2016. South Bronx Classical Charter School II changed its name to 
Classical Charter Schools, and each School is authorized by the New York State Education 
Department. South Bronx Classical Charter School I and III were disolved in conjunction 
with this merger. 
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FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

156 WEST 56TH STREET
 

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019
 

TEL: (212) 957-3600 

FAX: (212) 957-3696 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of South Bronx 
Classical Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 
30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 21, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
September 21, 2016 
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New York State Education Department
�
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 


Board of Regents
�

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates
�

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
Enter information into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



harter School
OR 2016-2017

30, 2017
t Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

ROGRAM SERVICES

    
   

      
                        

   

   

   

    

     

   

   

  

      

      

      

      

      

  

    

  

  

    

      

   

    

   

     

      

        

  

    

      

   

    

 

  
 

   

South Bronx Classical C
�
PROJECTED BUDGET F 

July 1, 2016 to June 

5,252,281 

4,782,613 

469,668 

387 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 387 

P 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

District of Location 12 $14,027.00 5,151,765 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -

School District 3 (Enter Name) -

School District 4 (Enter Name) -

School District 5 (Enter Name) -

5,151,765 

Special Education Revenue -

5,180,314 

8,674 

62,493 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

CY Per Pupil Rate 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollmen 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 

Net Income 

Actual Student Enrollment 

Grants 

Stimulus -

Other -

28,549 Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs -

Title I -

Title Funding - Other 8,674 

School Food Service (Free Lunch) -

Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation -

Other -

Other Federal Revenue -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
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800 

Erate Reimbursement -

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) -

Food Service (Income from meals) -

63,293 

Text Book -

Other Local Revenue -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

5,252,281 TOTAL REVENUE 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 36,960 

Instructional Management 253,520 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 399,860 

CFO / Director of Finance 
-

Operation / Business Manager -

Administrative Staff -

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

0.33 

2.33 

4.33 

1.32 

4.33 

-

13 690,340 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 2,051,922 

Teachers - SPED -

Substitute Teachers -

Teaching Assistants 232,000 

Specialty Teachers -

Aides -

Therapists & Counselors 

34.00 

5.00 

-

5.00 

-

-

- -

Other - 105,463 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 44 2,389,385 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse
�

Librarian
�

Custodian
�

Security
�

Other
�

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

758,512 

Payroll Taxes 351,088 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 284,235 

Retirement / Pension 123,189 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

57 3,079,725 



     

 

     

  

    

   

    

   

    

     

       

    

 

   

      

     

   

   

    

   

  

     

   

   

    

   

   

   

     

    

   

  

  

    

   

  

  

       

    

    

  

  

      

3,838,237 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

122,453 

-Accounting / Audit 

Legal -

Management Company Fee -

Nurse Services -

Food Service / School Lunch 

Payroll Services -

Special Ed Services -

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) -

122,453 Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses -

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 26,191.43 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials -

Textbooks / Workbooks 40,061 

-Supplies & Materials other 

66,779 Equipment / Furniture 

Telephone -

44,519 Technology 

Student Testing & Assessment 5,526 

Field Trips 105,908 

Transportation (student) -

Student Services - other 151,494 

62,426 Office Expense 

144,550 Staff Development 

Staff Recruitment 31,163 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 371 

School Meals / Lunch 13,814 

Travel (Staff) 1,855 

Fundraising -

-Other 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 694,657 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

36,743 

Insurance 31,178 

Janitorial -

Building and Land Rent / Lease -

Repairs & Maintenance 1,113 

Equipment / Furniture 4,452 

Security -

Utilities -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

http:26,191.43


    

       

   

   

        

      

    

    

    

    

   

    

    

  
 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY -

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 90,522 

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,782,613 

469,668 

387 

387 

13,572 

12,358 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

NET INCOME 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location 12 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 

School District 3 (Enter Name) 

School District 4 (Enter Name) 

School District 5 (Enter Name) 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 



South Bronx Classical
PROJECTED BUDGET

July 1, 2016 to Jun
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollme
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Charter School
�
FOR 2016-2017 

e 30, 2017 
nt Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & 
OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL EDUCATION GENERAL 

869,054 - - 657,458 6,309,125 

(506,455) - - 36,787 -

23 -

23 410 

362,599 - - 694,245 6,309,125 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 

599,305 5,751,070 

- - - - -

- - - 599,305 5,751,070 

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

135,070 

-


-


2,451
�

- - - 135,070 

- - - -

- - - -

- - - 31,000 

137,521 599,305 5,917,140 

2,000 

223,078
�

-


-


-

-

-

225,078 233,752 

- - - 2,000 

- - - 223,078 

- - - 8,674 

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - 93,740 156,233 
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 -  -  -  -  - 

   -  -     

          

          

          

   -  -     

- - - - -

- - - 1,200 2,000 

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

94,940 158,233 

- - - - -

362,599 694,245 6,309,125 

456,840 1,147,180 

- - - 55,440 92,400 

- - - - 253,520 

- - - - 399,860 

- - - 51,140 51,140 

- - - 350,260 350,260 

- - - - -

614,078 3,003,463 

223,078 - - - 2,275,000 

391,000 - - - 391,000 

- - - - -

- - - - 232,000 

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - 105,463 

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

614,078 456,840 4,150,643 

151,243 112,517 1,022,272 

70,005 - - 52,080 473,173 

56,675 - - 42,163 383,073 

24,563 - - 18,274 166,026 
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765,321 569,357 5,172,915 

5,614 38,000 166,067 

- - - 5,000 5,000 

- - - 25,000 25,000 

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

5,614 8,000 136,067 

72,744 31,223 798,623 

2,248.57 - - - 28,440 

- - - - -

2,000 - - - 2,000 

3,439 - - - 43,500 

- - - - -

13,315 - - 9,906 90,000 

- - - - -

8,877 - - 6,604 60,000 

474 - - - 6,000 

9,092 - - - 115,000 

- - - - -

13,006 - - - 164,500 

12,447 - - 9,760 84,633 

- - - - 144,550 

6,214 - - 4,623 42,000 

74 - - 55 500 

1,186 - - - 15,000 

370 - - 275 2,500 

- - - - -

- - - - -

7,326 5,450 49,520 

6,217 - - 4,625 42,020 

- - - - -

- - - - -

222 - - 165 1,500 

888 - - 660 6,000 

- - - - -

- - - - -

http:2,248.57
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18,050 - - 13,428 122,000 

- - - - -

869,054 657,458 6,309,125 

(506,455) - - 36,787 -

23 410 

-

-

-

-

23 410 

15,765 -

37,785 -

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 



 

        

   

    

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

based on 410 scholars 

Based on 13 billable scholars 

NYSTL 



         

         

    

 

      

  

  

              
        

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time equivalent) 

.33 ED - .66 allocated to SBC II & III 

Includes .33 DCI & 2 ICs 

Includes 4.33 Deans 

Includes 1 OM, 3 OA, .33 Data Analyst 

Includes all special services 

Includes tutoring, SLA, planning 

Incudes 1 Director of Business, 1 Director of Talent, 1 Talent Associate, and 1 IT 
Manager - Salary is allocated to SBC I, II, III 



        

        

Finical Consultant, HS Placement Consultant, PD Consultant. Contract Subs 

Family Advisory cost, Assemblies, SLA expense, After School Tutoring 
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SOUTH BRONX CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL I 

Board Meeting Minutes 

October 13, 2015 
South Bronx Classical Charter School prepares students for college preparatory high schools and 
colleges.  Through a classical curriculum and highly structured setting, students become liberated 
scholars and citizens of impeccable character. 

Trustees Attending: Mr. C. Stephen Baldwin, Ms. Ingrid Bateman, Mr. Bill Higgins, 
Mr. James Maher, Mr. J. Kevin Murphy, Ms. Smaylovsky,  

Trustees Absent: Ms. Brown, Prof. Heleniak, Mr. Hirsch 

Trustees Phoning in: None 

Guests: Mr. Lester Long 

I. Call to Order 

There being a quorum, the Chair called the Meeting to order at SBCCS II at 333 
East 135th Street, Bronx, N.Y. at 6:15 p.m. 

II. Review of Minutes 

The Board Members approved the minutes from the 8/25/2015 Board Meeting. 



 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

III. Report of the Chair 

The Chair entered into Executive Session to hear strategic options pertaining to 
the continued expansion of SBCCS. The relevant minutes of the Executive Session, filed 
separately, are integral to the record of this meeting. 

The Chair also took the opportunity to explain that Outreach grants of up to 
$500,000 are being offered by NYS to Charter schools which can effectively share with 
public schools their curriculum, methods, and instruction. He suggested that we convene 
a subcommittee to investigate the opportunity, while not adding to the ED’s workload. 
Messrs. Higgins, Maher, and Murphy will aid the Chair in responding to the RFP. 

IV. Executive Director’s Report 

On the business side, the process of merging the educational corporations is 
proceeding slowly with a target date of June 30, 2016. There are several literacy 
initiatives which are underway especially in the early grades including revamping the 
phonics program, formulating a home reading program and tutoring program, as well as a 
“Close reading” program for all grades. Other initiatives are also underway including the 
establishment of an on-line video library of best practices and work with the Special 
Services Team, which includes SETSS, speech, counseling, occupational and physical 
therapies. 

V. Fundraising & Development 

The annual solicitation letter is in preparation by Prof. Heleniak, Ms. Bateman 
and Ms. Smaylovsky. Consideration is being given to increasing the annual board 
donations, which requirement has not increased for 10 years. Ms. Bateman is conducted a 
survey of trustees to develop a consensus on the amount. With the declination of one 
board candidate and the imminent departure of Ms. Brown for London, new board 
trustees are being sought. 

VI. Finance & Audit Committee Report 

The Financial Statements for through 6/30/2015 and the prior comparative year 
are included as a PDF file in the accompanying folder. The Statement of Activities shows 
negative change of $221,065 for the year, largely attributable to advances of start up 
expenses to SBCCS II, $218,951, and SBCCS III, $120,605. These expenses were 
financed by a decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Investment position, however, 
remains exceedingly liquid at $4,209,403 at the end of the period, with Unrestricted Net 
assets of $4,649,913 and Liabilities of $527, 151. 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   
 
 

 
 

 

Our Auditors, Fruchter Rosen & Company, P.C., have completed their audit of 
the materials supporting these financial statements according to Government Auditing 
Standards and stated in their report that the Financial Statements present fairly the 
financial position of the school at June 30, 2015, and noting no observable material 
weakness in the reporting procedures. 

The Trustees: 

VOTED to approve the Financial Statements as presented for FY 2014-2015 and to 
accept the results of the audit as presented. 

VII. Calendar of Meetings for SBCCS 2015-2016 

Calendar for SBCCS Board Meetings 2015-2016 
August 25, 2015 January 19, 2016 

September 15, 2015 February 9, 2016 
October 13, 2015 March 8, 2016 

November 17, 2015 April 19, 2016 
December 15, 2015 May 17, 2016 

June 21, 2016 

All meetings begin at 6:00 p.m. at the designated venue.  

VII. Other Business and Adjournment 

There being no further business for SBCCS the Trustees went on to quickly 
review the business at SBCCS II and SBCCS III. 

The next meeting for SBCCS will take place on Tuesday, November 17, 2015 at 
6:00 p.m. at 1192 Park Avenue. 

        Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________ 
J. Kevin Murphy, Secretary 



























































 
 

   
 

    
 

 
  
  

      
  

   
 

   
 

  
  

  
   

 
  
   

 
      

   
 

   
 

  
   

 

    
  

  
    

  
 

   
 

   
  

South Bronx Classical Charter School I (“SBCCS I”) currently does not meet its enrollment targets of 
Special Education and English Language Learners. We have outlined several ways in which we have 
attempted to recruit this population of students in 2015-2016. 

1.	 All materials in our mass mailings of school information and student applications to nursery 
schools, Head Starts, and community organizations have Spanish translations and information 
about the special services we provide. 

2.	 All SBCCS I information session are held with a Spanish speaking translator. 
3.	 We have attended several student recruitment fairs. At both fairs, a bilingual staff member was 

present for its entirety. Information about SBCCS I Special Services was also distributed at both 
fairs. 

4.	 We distributed flyers at locations all over the South Bronx. All flyers were in both Spanish and 
English. 

5.	 All paper applications are in both English and Spanish. 
6.	 We gave presentations to local community organizations that serve ELL populations, including 

Mott Haven Community Partnership Program and South Bronx Churches. 
7.	 We contacted and distributed information about SBCCS I, in both English and Spanish, to seven 

local NYCHA housing developments. 
8.	 We run Facebook advertisement translated into English, Spanish, and French. 
9.	 We mailed information pamphlets and student applications, in both English and Spanish to 

12,000+ residents of the South Bronx. 
10. We advertised SBCCS in El Diario, a Spanish newspaper. El Diario is New York’s largest and 

oldest Spanish-language newspaper, and the nation’s oldest Spanish newspaper. 

Lastly, we know that the retention of these scholars is equally important. At SBCCS I, we are committed 
to supporting all of our scholars to meet the high expectations of our rigorous academic program. Over 
the past two years, we have taken a more targeted approach to support our scholars with language and 
learning differences. 

Beginning in Kindergarten, or when a scholar is identified as a student with a disability or an English 
Language Learner, we establish a close relationship with the family. This includes regular communication 
home via home-school logs and phone calls, as well as meetings with the team of educators who work 
with their scholars. During this contact, we communicate their scholar’s progress, areas of growth and 
areas of concern. We regularly evaluate changes in service depending on scholar progress, and service 
providers maintain at least monthly contact with parents.  We frequently send home enrichment 
activities for scholars in areas we have identified for growth. Parents are provided with staff members’ 
contact information and an open door policy is strongly communicated. 

When a scholar is struggling, we invite parents in to observe and work as a team to determine how to 
better support the scholar. We also see it as our role to educate parents about their scholar’s needs. 
For scholars with disabilities, we work with the CSE and the parent to determine the appropriate setting.  



  
   

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

   
 

 
  

  
     

 
  

  
 

 
   

If we do not have a setting that is identified as appropriate for the scholar, we supplement our current 
services to ensure the scholar continues to make progress, and we also accompany parents when 
looking at alternate placements, if they wish to move to a different setting. In our communication with 
parents, we emphasize a commitment to each scholar’s growth through whatever resources we have 
available.  

In the coming months and year, we are looking into expanding our current services to include more 
restrictive settings, special education focused parent groups, bilingual resources to support academics, 
and ongoing teacher development to support this population of students. 

Beginning in 2015-2016, SBCCS I began to improve its identification of English Language Learners. Rather 
than administering the Home Language Questionnaire (HLQ) to parents as part of the student 
enrollment packet, SBCCS I began to administer the survey one-on-one to parents, in person. In previous 
years, parent error in filling out the HLQ has led to underreporting of scholars who don’t speak English 
fluently, or don’t speak exclusively English at home, either due to not understanding the form or fear of 
‘labeling’ their child. During new student enrollment in 2015 – 2016 (for new students starting in 2016-
2017), a series of questions were asked to ensure that parents have completed the form completely and 
accurately. Spanish-speaking staff clarified the purpose of this form to Spanish speaking parents. We 
ensured that HLQs were administered in the parent’s preferred language. 

In addition to this, SBCCS I began administering the NYISTELL assessment to newly registered and 
eligible Kindergarten students in July 2016. We believe that earlier and better identification of our 
English Language Learners will improve our work in attracting and retaining this population of students, 
as well as better serve them during their time in our school. 
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ANNUAL CALENDAR 2016 – 2017
 

August 2016 
S M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 4 
7 8 9 10 11 12 
14 15 16 17 18 19 
21 22 23 24 25 26 
28 29 30 31 

November 2016 
S M T W T F 

1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 
13 14 

4 
11 

15 16 17 18 
20 21 22 23 
27 28 29 30 

24 25 

February 2017 
S M T W T F 

1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 

3 
10 

12 13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 

26 27 28 

May 2017 
S M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 

5 
12 

14 15 16 17 18 19 
21 22 23 24 25 26 
28 29 30 31 

September 2016 
S S M T W T F S S 
6 1 

5 
12 

2 3 
13 4 6 7 8 9 10 2 
20 11 13 14 15 16 17 9 
27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 

25 26 27 28 29 30 23 
30 

December 2016 
S S M T W T F S S 
5 1 2 3 1 
12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 
19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 
26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 

March 2017 
S S M T W T F S S 
4 1 2 3 4 
11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 
18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 
25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 
30 

June 2017 
S S M T W T F S S 
6 1 

8 
2 3 

13 4 5 6 7 9 10 2 
20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 
27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 

25 26 27 28 29 30 23 
30 

October 2016 
M T W T F S 

1 
63 4 5 

10 11 12 
8 

13 
7 
14 15 

17 18 19 20 21 22 
24 25 26 27 28 29 
31 

January 2017 
M T W T F S 

3 4 52 7 
9 

6 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 

23 
16 

24 25 26 27 28 
30 31 

April 2017 
M T W T F S 

1 
7

10 11 12 13 14
17 18 19 20 21

3 4 5 6 8 
15 
22 

24 25 26 27 28 29 

July 2017 
M T W T F S 

1 
3 4 5 6 7 8 
10 11 12 13 14 15 
17 18 19 20 21 22 
24 25 26 27 28 29 
31 

There are 194 school days in the 2016 - 2017 academic year. Boxes indicate no school.
 
Diagonal lines indicate early dismissal days (at 1pm)
 

HOLIDAYS 

August 17 First Day of School November 8 Election Day Apr. 10-18 Spring Recess 
September 5 Labor Day November 11 Veterans Day May 29 Memorial Day 
September 12 Eid al-Adha Nov. 24-25 Thanksgiving June 8 Chancellor’s Day 
October 3-4 Rosh Hashanah Dec. 26 – Jan 2 Winter Recess June 26 Eid al-Fitr 
October 10 Columbus Day January 16 MLK Jr. Day June 28 Last Day of School 
October 12 Yom Kippur Feb 20– 24 Mid- Winter Recess 
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